
STAFF MEETING MINUTES 
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING 
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2017 
8:30 A.M. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Todd Wiltgen, Chair; Bill Avery, Vice Chair; Roma Amundson and Jennifer 
Brinkman 
 
Commissioner Absent:  Deb Schorr 
 
Others Present:  Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer; Ann Ames, Deputy Chief Administrative 
Officer; Dan Nolte, County Clerk; Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk; and Kelly Lundgren, County 
Clerk’s Office 
 
Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the County-City 
Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska web site and provided to the media on 
October 11, 2017. 
 
The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m. 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - (A) STAFF MEETING FOR SEPTEMBER 28, 2017; 
AND (B) TRI COUNTY MEETING FOR OCTOBER 5, 2017 

 
   A.  Staff Meeting for September 28, 2017 
 
MOTION: Brinkman moved and Amundson seconded approval of the minutes. 
 
Brinkman noted a correction to page 5, item 11b.  She asked that name Olsen be corrected to reflect 
Olsson and Associates.  
 
ROLL CALL:  Brinkman, Amundson and Wiltgen voted yes.  Avery and Schorr were absent.  Motion 
carried 3-0.   
 

B.  Tri County Meeting for October 5, 2017 
 
MOTION: Amundson moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the minutes.  Amundson and 
Wiltgen voted yes.  Brinkman abstained.  Avery and Schorr were absent.  Motion carried 2-0 with one 
abstention.  
 
Avery entered the meeting at 8:34 a.m.  
 
 2. ACCELERATED HIRE OF RECORDS SYSTEM SPECIALIST AND DEPUTY   
  SHERIFF - Sheriff Terry Wagner 
 
Terry Wagner, County Sheriff, stated due to two upcoming retirements creating a staff shortage he is 
requesting to hire a new Records System Specialist in advance of those retirements.  This would 
allow for training and reduce strain on the current staff.  



 
MOTION:  Amundson moved and Brinkman seconded to authorize the Sheriff to proceed with the 
accelerated hiring process.  Avery, Brinkman, Amundson and Wiltgen voted yes.  Schorr was absent.  
Motion carried 4-0.   
 
Wagner said Sergeant Mike Novacek would be retiring and his last day on the payroll would February 
8, 2018.  He noted the academy starts on January 2, 2018 and with the Board’s approval he would 
like to issue a letter of intent to a prospective employee.  Wagner added the cost of the dual salaries 
would run from the last week in December to the second week in February. 
 
MOTION:  Amundson moved and Brinkman seconded to authorize the Sheriff to proceed with the 
hiring of a deputy sheriff.  Brinkman, Amundson, Avery and Wiltgen voted yes.  Schorr was absent.  
Motion carried 4-0.   
 
 3. (A) ROADSIDE MEMORIALS; AND (B) 1 & 6 YEAR ROAD AND BRIDGE   
  PROGRAM – Pam Dingman, County Engineer 
 
  A.  Roadside Memorials 
 
Pam Dingman, County Engineer, stated Commissioner Schorr has been receiving a number of 
complaints from residents regarding the placement of roadside memorials.  Dingman discussed how 
other states and counties handle this issue.  She said the memorials are a safety issue on County 
roads with stopped vehicles and, depending on what is used as an anchor, they can cause damage to 
vehicles.  Dingman proposed a policy whereby the public could purchase an approved sign from the 
County and have it placed at the site.  She stated the memorial sign could remain for three years at 
which time the sign would be given back to the purchaser.  Dingman added the policy could include 
an option to extend the sign for an additional fee for another three years.    
 
Brinkman requested that there be sufficient time to review the policy prior to it being placed on a 
Tuesday agenda. 
 
The consensus of the Board was to proceed with developing a policy regarding roadside memorials.    
 
  B.  1 & 6 Year Road and Bridge Program  
 
Dingman provided a preview of her presentation for the One and Six-Year Road and Bridge Program 
public hearing that is scheduled for Tuesday, November 7th at 7:00 p.m. (Exhibit A) as well as the 
Program report (Exhibit B).  Note:  Copies of the report are available at the County Engineer’s Office 
and the County Board Office.  Dingman discussed the following items: 
 

 Bridge status 
 Amount of overlay needed 
 FEMA reimbursement delay 
 NEMA Hazardous Mitigation Grants 
 Proposed projects 

 
  CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT  
 
  B.  Follow-up on Board of Equalization Property Valuation Process Public Hearing  



Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, said Brinkman requested this item be added to the agenda 
to discuss what steps the Board wishes to take following the public hearing.  
 
Brinkman stated she felt there should be a follow up to consider any potential changes in the process 
or submitting a request for proposal (RFP).   
 
Wiltgen said the comments that were made during the public hearing were things that the Board did 
not really have any control over.   
 
Amundson said she felt the current process was working well but that communication between the 
referees and the public could be improved.  She also expressed concern about the property data 
(comps) used by the County Assessor’s Office.   
 
Eagan noted the informal protest process with the Assessor’s Office is an opportune time for the 
property owner to discuss their value and any incorrect parcel information with a staff member.   
 
Brinkman added that she was not sure the final meeting for the protest process was that beneficial.  
She agreed with Eagan that a more aggressive effort be made to promote the informal protest 
process in January. 
 
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk, said she would contact Tom Kubert, Referee Coordinator, Great 
Plains Appraisal, about attending a future staff meeting to discuss the process.  Wiltgen suggested 
inviting the County Assessor’s Office as well.  
 
 4. TRABERT HALL – Topher Hansen, CenterPointe CEO; and Brad Korell, CenterPointe  
  Board of Directors Chair 
 
Topher Hansen, CenterPointe CEO, said CenterPointe is currently looking for space to increase not 
only mental health services but also physical health.  He stated CenterPointe would be interested in 
partnering with Lancaster County and in purchasing Trabert Hall.  Hansen said although a great deal 
of updating would be required, the building does provide space for future growth.   
 
Brad Korell, CenterPointe Board of Directors Chair, stated he has visited with CenterPointe’s Executive 
Committee and there is definite interest in the building as it sits well within their service area.  He 
said The Clark Enersen Partners has been asked to provide remodeling ideas.   
 
Hansen said the County could declare the building surplus and put it up for auction or, pursuant to 
§23-104.03, it could designate this as a partnership with a non-profit agency that serves the County’s 
interest and dedicate the sale to CenterPointe specifically.   
 
Eagan stated the appraisal was based on the special permit for historic preservation.  He said Hansen 
was correct regarding how the County Board could proceed with the sale.  It could declare the 
property surplus, conduct a public hearing, establish a fair market value and hold a public sale within 
sixty days of the hearing.  Eagan said at that point the Board would be free to negotiate with any 
party on behalf of the County’s best interest.  The other option would be not to declare the property 
surplus and sell it under §23-104.03 which requires the buyer to provide human services.  Eagan 
noted that Lancaster Manor (former County-owned nursing home) was sold under this procedure.   
 
 



Amundson said there is a critical need for CenterPointe’s services and she was supportive of their 
proposal to purchase the building.   
 
Brinkman stated that she would also be interested in moving forward to see if an agreement can be 
reached that provides a reasonable price for the building and enables CenterPointe to do renovations.   
 
Avery asked Hansen if he knew what CenterPointe would be prepared to offer for the building.  
Hansen said he hoped to have a better idea on the renovation costs within a few weeks.  He noted 
that CenterPointe is also working to establish some community partners for the project.   
 
Brinkman asked Eagan if there was a time frame for the sale that needed to be considered.  Eagan 
said there was none at this point.   
 
Avery exited the meeting at 10:01 a.m.   
 
Wiltgen stated it was the Board’s consensus not to proceed with the sale of Trabert Hall until 
CenterPointe has an opportunity to submit a proposal.   
 
Avery returned to the meeting at 10:08 a.m. 
 
 5. COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PROGRAM MANAGER - Kim Etherton, Community  
  Corrections Director  
 
Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, said in an effort to start moving forward with grant 
functions she is requesting to open a Program Manager position and temporarily promote one 
existing staff person without increasing staff.  She stated this will be a C22 position.    
 
MOTION:  Amundson moved and Brinkman seconded to authorize the Community Corrections 
Director to open the position of Program Manager.  Brinkman, Amundson, Avery and Wiltgen voted 
yes.  Schorr was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.    
 
 6. BREAK 
 
The meeting was recessed at 10:13 a.m. and reconvened at 10:24 a.m. 
 
 7. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BRENT MEYER, LANCASTER COUNTY WEED   
  CONTROL AUTHORITY SUPERINTENDENT 
 
Brent Meyer, Lancaster County Weed Control Authority Superintendent, provided a power point 
presentation outlining his job duties, accomplishments and goals (see agenda packet).  He also 
distributed copies of “Thistles of Nebraska” (Exhibit C) and “Sportsman’s Guide to Nebraska’s 
Invasive Species” (Exhibit D). 
 
Avery exited the meeting at 10:57 a.m.  
 
Amundson inquired if Meyer had considered using Hewlett Packard Records Manager (HPRM).  Meyer 
said that he would be interested in exploring how HPRM could benefit their recordkeeping.   
 
 



Brinkman asked for feedback on what the County Board could do to improve communication.  Meyer 
invited the Commissioners to visit the Weed Control Office and to ride along with one of the 
inspectors.  He added he appreciated the County Board’s support.   
 
Avery returned to the meeting at 11:07 a.m.  
 
 8. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF JAMES DAVIDSAVER, LINCOLN-LANCASTER  
  COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR  
 
Jim Davidsaver, Lincoln-Lancaster County Emergency Management Director, provided a power point 
presentation outlining his job duties, accomplishments and goals (see agenda packet).  
 
In response to Amundson’s inquiry if Emergency Management was using HPRM, Davidsaver said they 
currently are required to use the State’s grant management system and he felt it would be redundant 
to use HPRM.   
 
Ann Ames, Chief Deputy Administrative Officer, suggested that Davidsaver schedule an active shooter 
drill for the County.  Davidsaver offered to contact Captain Jerry Witte, County Sheriff’s Office, with 
regard to scheduling an active shooter exercise.  
 
Brinkman asked for feedback on what the County Board could do to improve communication.  
Davidsaver stated if the Board has any concerns, he would prefer to know them sooner rather than 
later.   
 
 9. APPOINTMENT OF KERIN PETERSON AS THE PROJECT MANAGER FOR THE  
  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT RELOCATION PROJECT – Jim Davidsaver, Lincoln- 
  Lancaster County Emergency Management Director  
 
Eagan said Kerin Peterson, Facilities & Properties Director, would be the best choice for Project 
Manager for the Emergency Management relocation project.   
 
The consensus was for Peterson to serve as Project Manager.   
 
Peterson stated she has seen the needs assessment and mechanical studies as well as the drawings 
provided and feels things are ready to move forward.   
 
 10. ACTION ITEMS 
 
There were no action items.   
 
 11. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
  A.  Trabert Hall Sale 
  B.  Follow-Up on Board of Equalization Property Valuation Process Public Hearing 
 
Items 11A-B were moved forward on the agenda.  
 
 12. CHIEF DEPUTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER  
 
  A.  Website Update  



 
Ames stated this item will be held until the October 19th meeting.  She also requested that 
Commissioners discontinue using their personal email addresses to receive County emails.  Ames said 
emails regarding County business will be forwarded to commish@lancaster.ne.gov.   
 
 13. GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 
  A.  Joint Meeting with Lancaster County Agricultural Society – Thursday, November 16,  
       2017, 7:30 p.m., Lancaster Event Center (Alternative dates November 14 and 15,  
       2017) 
 
The joint meeting with the Lancaster County Agricultural Society was scheduled for Wednesday, 
November 15, 2017.  The start time will be confirmed.   
 
  B.  City-County Common Meeting Agenda Items (Monday, November 6, 2017, 11:45  
       a.m.) 
 
Brinkman said potential improvements to the security area into the Justice and Law Enforcement 
Center have been proposed and Captain Jerry Witte could provide an update.   
 
Wiltgen said he could provide an update on the bridge funding and the interlocal agreement and by-
laws for the Justice Council.  He also would like to have an update on the Criminal Justice 
Information System (CJIS).   
  
  C.  Employee Expense Reports 
 
Wiltgen said a new detailed claim form will be available.  He stated for greater transparency those 
expense forms submitted by an elected official could also appear as a staff meeting agenda item.  
 
Eagan said he would ask Dave Derbin, Deputy County Attorney, to attend next Thursday’s staff 
meeting to discuss revising the current resolution regarding reimbursement of miscellaneous 
expenditures.    
 
Brinkman expressed concern with the amount of claims the Board would be required to review.   
 
Amundson suggested trying the process for one year to see if it is going to be too time consuming.   
 
  D.  Volunteer Opportunity  
 
This item was held.  
 
 14. DISCUSSION OF OTHER MEETNGS ATTENDED 
 
There were no other meetings discussed.   
 
 15. DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 
  A.  Chamber of Commerce Coffee – Wiltgen/Schorr/Amundson 
 



 
Wiltgen said Dave Rimington, University of Nebraska-Lincoln Athletic Director, was the featured 
speaker.  Updates were given on the County budget, service-based information website and 
legislative priorities.  Lincoln Public Schools also discussed the overcrowding situation.   
 
  B.  Public Building Commission Chair Meeting with Mayor –  
 
Meeting was cancelled. 
 
  C.  Lancaster County Board Chair/Vice Chair Meeting with Mayor – 
 
Meeting was cancelled. 
 
  D.  Public Building Commission – Amundson/Brinkman 
 
Amundson said they discussed the 911 Center, the 575 Building duct repair, remodeling projects for 
Aging Partners and Information Systems and Linda Wilson’s retirement.   
 
Brinkman added that last pay applications were approved for the 605 Building as was the bid for 
renovation of the Public Defender’s building.   
 
  E.  Lincoln-Lancaster County Board of Health – Avery  
 
Avery stated the primary discussion was on the history and roll of the Board of Health.   
 
  F.  Lancaster County Crisis Center Advisory Committee – Avery  
 
Avery reported the issue with the locks has not been resolved but the windows have been replaced.  
 
 16. SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS  
 
Informational only.  
 
 17. EMERGENCY ITEMS 
 
There were no emergency items. 
 
 18. ADJOURNMENT  
 
MOTION:  Brinkman moved and Amundson seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:45 p.m.  
Brinkman, Amundson, Avery and Wiltgen voted yes.  Schorr was absent.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
 
__________________________ 
Dan Nolte 
Lancaster County Clerk 



Planning Commission  Public Hearing
1 & 6 Year 
Road and Bridge Construction 
10/11/2017

Lancaster County Engineering

ccvksl
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



Pam Dingman, PE

Lancaster  County  Engineer

Lancaster  County 

402‐441‐8332

pdingman@lancaster.ne.gov

Lancaster County Engineering



Lancaster County Engineering
Completed  2017



Completed New Pavement
• Adams from 103rd to 148th

Completed Overlays
Completed Bridge Maintenance –
H-66, D-88, H-120

Completed Bridges – G-111, G-144, F-225,
J-143, H-130, H-128

Lancaster County Engineering
Projects Completed in 2017



• Some projects were delayed because not 
all FEMA money reimbursements have 
been received

• Two projects that had received NEMA 
Hazard Mitigation Grants remain 
unfunded

• Bridge C‐91 and West Raymond Road 
were delayed one year due to NDOT 
project.

Lancaster County Engineering
Projects Completed in 2017



Lancaster County Engineering
Projects Completed in 2017



Lancaster County Engineering
FY 2018



• Paving – 98th Street

• Overlays – Maybe reduced depending on 
flood reimbursements 

• Bridges –C‐91, B‐147, E‐117, and N‐19 

• Bridges Maintenance – o‐175,  H‐119

• Culverts

Lancaster County Engineering
Projects Proposed for 2018



Lancaster County Engineering
FY 2019-2023



Proposed Projects 2019-2024

• Paved Shoulders ‐ Saltillo Road, 68th Street
• Pavement –54th Street, 162nd Street, 

SW 14th Street

• Engineering – 98th Street (A to O) and 
(Adams to Holdrege)

• Bridges – F‐88
• South and East Beltway

Lancaster County Engineering



Lancaster County Engineering
































































